
LICENSING (HEARING) SUB 
COMMITTEE

Date: TUESDAY, 26 JUNE 2018

Time: 2.00 pm

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 1, 2ND 
FLOOR, WEST WING, GUILDHALL 

Applicant: Beverly Hurley 

Premises: Gremio De London Ltd, 26A 
Savage Gardens, EC3N 2AR

Public Document Pack



2

CONTENTS

Hearing Procedure (Pages 1 - 2)

Report of the Director of Markets & Consumer Protection (Pages 3 - 8)

i)  Application for Review (Pages 9 - 16)

ii)  Photographs in support of review application (Pages 17 - 
18)

Appendix 2:  Premises licence including conditions and plans (Pages 19 - 
30)

Appendix 3:  Representations from responsible authorities

i)  Environmental Health (Pages 31 - 
38)

ii)  Planning (Pages 39 - 
42)

iii)  Licensing (Pages 43 - 
44)

iv)  London Fire Brigade (Pages 45 - 
48)

Appendix 4:  Representations from Other Persons

i)  Pepys Street RTM (Pages 49 - 
56)

ii)  Gillot (Crutched Friars RA) (Pages 57 - 
58)

iii)  Marianne Fredericks CC (Pages 59 - 
64)

iv)  Mark Field MP (Pages 65 - 
66)

v)  Alan Perrin (Pages 67 - 
68)

vi)  Nigel Lall (Pages 69 - 
72)



3

vii)  R Robinson (Pages 73 - 
74)

viii)  Geoff Boyd (Pages 75 - 
76)

ix)  Mark Leverick (Pages 77 - 
80)

x)  Lopa Sarkar (Pages 81 - 
82)

xi)  Ivan Morozov (Pages 83 - 
84)

xii)  Mark Stewart (Pages 85 - 
86)

xiii)  John & Lynn Wood (Pages 87 - 
88)

xiv)  Jayne Evans (Pages 89 - 
94)

xv)  Keith Mansfield (Pages 95 - 
98)

xvi)  Paul Pavlou (Pages 99 - 
100)

xvii)  Resident (Pages 101 - 
102)

xviii)  Luida Mahalski (Pages 103 - 
104)

xix)  Anthony Mahalski (Pages 105 - 
106)

xx)  Frank & Margaret Robotham (Pages 107 - 
110)

xxi)  Timothy Jordan (Pages 111 - 
114)

xxii)  Adrian & Carol (Pages 115 - 
130)

xxiii)  Nicholas Jepson (Pages 131 - 
134)



4

xxiv)  Anthony Agoro (Pages 135 - 
136)

xxv)  Mark Rowan (Pages 137 - 
138)

Appendix 5:  Licence holder representation (Pages 139 - 
142)

Appendix 6:  Map of subject premises together with other licensed 
premises in the area and their latest terminal time for 
alcohol sales

(Pages 143 - 
144)



LICENSING (HEARING) SUB COMMITTEE
 PROCEDURE FOR PUBLIC HEARINGS

1. This procedure shall apply to all public hearings conducted under the provisions 
of the Licensing Act 2003.

2. Public hearings conducted under the provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 shall 
take the form of a discussion led by the licensing authority. Cross-examination 
will be permitted when the Sub Committee considers it to be required. The 
conduct of hearings shall be broadly based, subject to the discretion of the Sub 
Committee, on the points set out below.

3. At the start of the hearing the Chairman of the Sub Committee will introduce 
him/herself and other Members of the Sub Committee as well as the City 
Corporation officers present. Anyone making representations will then be asked 
to introduce themselves and anyone accompanying them. The applicant will 
then do likewise.1

4. The Chairman will then explain the purpose of the hearing and the procedure to 
be followed at the hearing. The Sub Committee will then make any rulings 
necessary in respect of requests for witnesses to be heard in support of any of 
the parties making representations or the applicant. 

5. Those making representations will then be invited to present their case. 
Repetition will not be permitted. Equal time will be offered to the applicant and 
those making representations. Where there is more than one party making 
representations and/or calling witnesses in support, consideration should be 
given to having one spokesman on behalf of all parties so as to avoid repetition. 
Although the use of a spokesman will be encouraged by the Sub Committee, 
the decision rests with those parties making representations.

6. In the event of disorder or persistent disregard of the authority of the Chair, the 
Chairman may suspend or adjourn the hearing, or require that the person(s) 
causing disorder or showing disregard leave the hearing.

7. In the event that the Sub Committee has decided that cross-examination will be 
permitted, the applicant will be invited to ask questions of the party(s) making 
representations and their witnesses (if any). The party(s) making 
representations and any witnesses giving evidence in support will then answer 
any questions put to them by members of the Sub Committee. 

8. The applicant will then be invited to present their case and call any witnesses in 
support of their application. The applicant will be entitled to the same period of 
time to present his case as those making representations were afforded.

1 In hearings where a licence is being reviewed, references in this procedure to ‘applicant’ should be read as 
references to the licence holder and references to ‘those making representations’ should be read as references to 
those applying for the review.

Page 1

Agenda Annex



9. In the event that the Sub Committee has decided that cross-examination will be 
permitted, those making representations will be invited to ask questions of the 
applicant and their witnesses (if any). The applicant and any witnesses giving 
evidence in support will then answer any questions put to them by members of 
the Sub Committee. 

10. The Chairman will ask all parties if there is anything else they would like to add 
in support of their respective cases.

11. Those making representations will then be invited to make closing submissions 
followed by the applicant.

12. The Sub Committee will then retire to consider their decision. They may call for 
assistance by the representatives of the Town Clerk and/or the Comptroller & 
City Solicitor but those persons will play no part in the decision-making process.

13. In due course, the Sub Committee will return to announce their decision or to 
inform those present when the decision will be given.

Page 2



Committee:  
Licensing

Hearing Date:  
26 June 2018

Item no.

Subject:
Licensing Act 2003 - Application for the review of a premises licence

Name of Premises: Gremio de Fenchurch
Address of Premises: 26 A Savage Gardens, EC3N 2AR

Report of:
Director of Markets and Consumer Protection

Public / Non- Public

Ward (if appropriate):  Tower

1 Introduction
1.1 To consider and determine, by public hearing, the application for a 

review of a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003, taking into 
account the representations of interested parties and responsible 
authorities detailed in paragraph 4, and the policy considerations 
detailed in paragraph 7 of this report.

1.2 The decision of the Sub-Committee must be made with a view to 
promoting one or more of the four licensing objectives, namely:
 the prevention of crime and disorder
 public safety
 the prevention of public nuisance
 the protection of children from harm

2 Summary of Application
2.1 An application under s.51 of the Licensing Act 2003, for the review of 

a premises licence has been made by Beverly Jane Hurley and was 
received by the Licensing Authority on 11 May 2018 in respect of the 
premises:

Gremio de Fenchurch
26A Savage Gardens
EC3N 2AR

Page 3

Agenda Annex



on the grounds of the prevention of public nuisance and public safety. 
A copy of the application for review is attached as Appendix 1. 

Photographs supporting the review are attached as Appendix 1(i).

3 Licensing History of Premises
3.1 The premises historically traded as a restaurant and was licensed for the 

sale of alcohol on the first floor until 23:00 on Mondays to Saturdays 
and until 22:30 on Sundays. The premises licence was surrendered by 
the licence holder in May 2016 and the premises has remained closed 
since then.

3.2 A new licence was granted to Gremio De London Limited following a 
public hearing on 22nd June 2017.  The licence permits the following 
licensable activities:

Supply of alcohol 11:00 - 00:00 Mon to Weds
11:00 - 01:00 Thurs
11:00 - 02:00 Fri and Sat
12:00 - 00:00 Sun

Recorded music 12:00 - 00:00 Sun to Weds
12:00 - 01:00 Thurs
12:00 - 02:00 Fri and Sat

Late night refreshment 23:00 - 00:00 Sun to Weds
23:00 - 01:00 Thurs
23:00 - 02:00 Fri and Sat

Opening hours for the premises are:
10:00 - 00:30 Sun to Weds
10:00 - 01:30 Thurs
10:00 - 02:30 Fri and Sat

It should be noted that due to refurbishment works taking place at the 
premises, the licence has not been used since it was granted. 

A copy of the current premises licence, conditions and plan are attached 
as Appendix 2.

Page 4



4 Representations from Responsible Authorities
4.1 There representations from four responsible authorities; Environmental 

Health, Planning, Licensing and the Fire Authority.  All four 
representations support the review application.

4.2 The Environmental Health, Planning and Licensing Responsible 
Authorities are concerned that the use of the external terrace area for 
licensable activity will cause a public nuisance due to its extreme 
proximity to residential properties.  They also believe there is the 
potential for noise break out from the openable windows and doors on 
to the terrace.

4.3 The Fire Responsible Authority is concerned that the means of escape 
from the premises are inadequate for the proposed use therefore 
compromising public safety.

4.4 The representations from the Responsible Authorities are attached as 
Appendices 3(i) to 3(iv).

 
5 Representations From Other Persons
5.1 There are twenty-five (25) representations from other persons 

supporting the review application. Twenty-one (21) of those 
representations are from individual residents; one representation is from 
a management company representing 90 leaseholders at 1 Pepys Street; 
one representation is from a residents association representing 5 
residential properties on Crutched Friars; one representation is from a 
ward member; and one representation is from the MP for the Cities of 
London and Westminster. All representations support the review 
application and have concerns that once trading, the premises will 
undermine the licensing objective of the prevention of public nuisance. 
The representations are attached as Appendix 4(i) – 4(xxv).

6 Representation from the Licence Holder

6.1 The licence holder has submitted a representation against the review of 
his licence.  A copy of that representation is attached as Appendix 5.

Page 5



7 Policy Considerations
7.1 In carrying out its licensing functions, the Licensing Authority must 

have regard to its Statement of Licensing policy and statutory guidance 
issued under s 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

City of London Corporation’s Statement of Licensing Policy
7.2 The following sections/paragraphs of the City of London Corporation’s 

Statement of Licensing Policy are particularly applicable to this 
application (2017 Policy).

Paragraphs 65 – 71 set out the Corporation’s policy on the public safety 
licensing objective which has been engaged in this review application.

Paragraphs 72 – 86 set out the Corporation’s policy on the prevention 
of public nuisance licensing objective which has been engaged in this 
review application.

Paragraph 75 states, ‘Residents have a reasonable expectation that their 
sleep will not be unduly disturbed between the hours of 23:00 and 
07:00’.  It also addresses the need to strike a fair balance between the 
benefits to the community of licensed venues and the risk of 
disturbance to local residents and workers.   

Paragraph 86 introduces a number of relevant matters to be considered 
by the City Corporation when assessing the likelihood of a particular 
licensable activity causing an unacceptable adverse impact particularly 
on local residents and businesses. 

Paragraphs 115 - 121 state the Corporation’s policy on setting 
conditions which may be applicable dependant on the step(s) taken by 
members as outlined in paragraph nine.

Statutory Guidance
7.3 The following sections/paragraphs of the statutory guidance issued 

under s182 of the Licensing Act 2003 are particularly applicable to this 
application (revised April 2018):

Chapter 11 provides specific guidance on reviews. Paragraphs 11.16 to 
11.23 set out the powers available to the licensing authority where it 

Page 6



considers that action is necessary to promote the licensing objectives. 
Paragraph 11.20 stating that any remedial action, ‘…should always be 
no more than an appropriate and proportionate response to address the 
causes of concern that instigated the review’.

Chapter 10 refers to conditions attached to premises licences with 
paragraph 10.10 stating that, ‘Conditions should be determined on a 
case-by-case basis and standard conditions which ignore these 
individual aspects should be avoided.’ Also, ‘Licensing authorities 
should therefore ensure that any conditions they impose are only those 
which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.’ 

8 Map of area and nearby premises
8.1 A map showing the location of the premises together with nearby 

licensed premises is attached at Appendix 6. A key of those premises is 
included which indicates the maximum permitted hours for alcohol 
sales in respect of each premises.

9 Summary
9.1 The Licensing Authority has a duty under the Licensing Act 2003 to 

promote the Licensing Objectives. Each objective has equal 
importance. In carrying out its licensing functions, the Licensing 
Authority must also have regard to its Statement of Licensing Policy, 
any Statutory Guidance under the Licensing Act 2003 and is bound by 
the Human Rights Act 1998. The Corporation must also fulfil its 
obligations under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to do 
all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder in the City.

10 Options
10.1 The sub-committee must, having regard to the application and any 

relevant representations, take such of the following steps (if any) as it 
considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives:

i) modify the conditions of the licence (this includes altering 
or removing any existing condition or adding any new 
condition);

ii) exclude a qualifying activity from the scope of the licence;
iii) remove the designated premises supervisor;
iv) suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

Page 7



v) revoke the licence
In the event that the Sub-Committee decides to take either of the steps 
set out in i) and/or ii) above, it may provide that the modification or 
exclusion is to be permanent or temporary. If temporary, it shall have 
an effect for only such period that it may specify (not to exceed 3 
months).
Any decision of the Sub-Committee will not have effect until the end of 
21 days following notification of the decision to the appellant by the 
licensing authority. In the event of an appeal against the Sub-
Committee’s decision, the decision will be suspended pending the 
determination of the appeal. 

11 Recommendation
11.1 It is therefore RECOMMENDED that your Sub-Committee determine 

this application for a review of a premises licence in accordance with 
paragraph 9 of this report.

Prepared by P Davenport
Licensing Manager
peter.davenport@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Background Papers

BACKGROUND PAPER DEPT FILE

Corporation of London Statement of 
Licensing Policy (revised Jan 2013)

Statutory Guidance – ‘Revised 
Guidance Issued Under Section 182 
Of The Licensing Act 2003’.  March 
2015

MCP 5th Floor Walbrook Wharf

Statutory Guidance 

Page 8

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/418114/182-Guidance2015.pdf


Page 9

Appendix 1i)



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Photos A-C – views of the derelict area.

  E -  My bedroom window and part of 
rooflight in flat below, decking area and door.

D - New first floor decking area and doors 

Page 17

Appendix 1ii)



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Page 19

Appendix 2



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Page 31

Appendix 3i)



Page 32



At that meeting, to be heard attendees had to raise our voices quite considerably, to contend with the plant 
and ventilation noise already present within the area.  
 
Concern is also raised related to noise outbreak from openable doors and windows onto the terrace. 
 
Conclusion 

The Environmental Health Responsible Authority is of the opinion that the use of the external terrace areas 
for licensable activity and smoking in extreme close proximity to residential receptors and noise outbreak from 
openable windows and doors will cause public nuisance. 

Recommendation 

The Environmental Health Responsible authority requests the Committee to consider modifying the license to 
restrict use of the external terrace area for licensable activities at all times and add a condition which prevents 
patrons of the premises using the terrace area at any time. A condition requiring doors and windows to be 
kept closed is also requested.  

Supporting Information 
 
The following photographs illustrate the proximities of the residential receptors. 
 

 
Photograph 1 - View of fire escape from Gremio bar area, renewed decking for the fire route, frosted window 
to residents’ bedroom and roof light into another residential property window.  
 

Page 33



 

Photograph 2 -  Again shows the decking area / fire route from the bar area, the residents bedroom window 
and the new doors which have been installed into the archway, which consist of 2 sliding doors and a set of 
central fire doors. This photo also shows the stairs to be used in the event of a fire, or to access the ‘terrace’ 
as detailed in Image 1.  

Page 34



 

Image 1. Demonstrates the Licensable area, the ‘terrace’. This diagram neglects to note the bedroom 
windows in close proximity to the terrace and Fire route decking.

Page 35



 

Photograph 3 - is a panoramic image of the current condition of narrower tapered end of the ‘terrace’. In order to make this area safe work needs to be undertaken to level 
the land. 

 

Photograph 4 - is a panoramic view of the wall looking south toward the residential properties at 1 Pepys Street and Savage Gardens, behind a disused storage shed.  

P
age 36



 

Photograph 5 –  this photo shows the windows from 1 Pepys Street overlooking the ‘Terrace’ area, there are 90 
residential units within this block of flats.  

 

 

Photograph 6 – this photo shows the residential properties overlooking the ‘Terrace’ area from 25 Savage Gardens, 
there are 5 residential properties within this block.  

 

Page 37



 

Photograph 7 – this photo gives an indication 
about the amount of mechanical plant situated 
within the ‘Terrace’ area, underneath and to the 
right of the new doors in photograph 2.  

 

Photograph 8 – this photo is of the Fire route 
underneath the Fire Route decking as shown in 
photograph 1, this route exits out towards Savage 
Gardens.  
The white open door is Fire escape from the 
kitchens at the Bavarian Beer house.  
This photograph demonstrates the level of 
mechanical plant situated in this area, adding to 
the ambient noise levels.  

 Page 38



1

Minas, Aggie

From: Stothard, Gideon
Sent: 07 June 2018 17:48
To: M&CP - Licensing
Subject: RE: Application for licence review - Gremio De London, 26A Savage Gardens EC3N 

2AR (Tower ward)

Good afternoon 

I am emailing this representation in support of an application for the review of a premises licence at 26A Savage 
Gardens EC3N 2AR under the licensing objective prevention of a public nuisance. 

Relevant Planning History 
Planning permission was granted on 06/02/1969 (app. no. 4489K) for “Change of use of the 1st floor from 
warehouse to licensed restaurant (area involved 3,500 sq. ft.) at Arches 9a, b, c, d & e, Crutched friars”. Plans 
accompanying the application show that this relates to the internal area of 26A Savage Gardens. There is no 
planning permission for the yard adjoining 26A Savage Gardens (which is regarded as a separate planning unit). 
There have been no applications for change of use of either 26A Savage Gardens or the yard since. 

The yard to the rear of 26A Savage Gardens (land bounded by 25, 26 and 26A Savage Gardens, 1 Pepys Street, 
Coopers Row and the railway arches) was included within the licenced area on the plans submitted with the 2017 
licence application. A search of our records has returned no planning history for the yard.  

Planning Use 
On the 21 April 2005 the 1987 Use Classes Order was amended by the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 
(Amendment) (England) Order 2005. Those uses previously falling within Class A3 (Food and drink) which included 
restaurants, cafes and bars were reclassified into Class A3 (Restaurants and Cafes), Class A4 (Drinking 
establishments) and Class A5 (Hot food takeaways). If a premises were in use as a mix of these classes on 21 April 
2005, as defined by the Use Classes Order, the premises could continue to be used as such without requiring 
planning permission. On the basis of available evidence as to how the premises has been operating post 1969 and 
pre-21 April 2005, the indication is that the property has been used for the sale of food and drink for consumption in 
the building, and therefore falls within class A3. 

There is little evidence regarding any use of the external yard. There is some limited evidence that part of the yard 
has been minimally used as a smoking area accessible via the fire escape from 26A Savage Gardens. There were 
previously a couple of small outbuildings in the yard, possibly in use as storage for one of the retail units backing 
onto the yard (26A Savage Gardens, 9 Crutched Friars or 9A – 9B Crutched Friars) to a very limited extent. The owner 
of the land, Network Rail, described the yard as in poor condition, and that it had not been maintained for many 
years. Based on the evidence available, it is considered that any use of the yard in connection with the restaurant 
until commencement of the recent building works has been very limited (i.e. de minimus) and not sufficient to be 
give rise to any established A3 or A4 planning use of the yard, nor to alter the position that it remained a separate 
planning unit. The yard therefore has no authorised use in planning terms.   

Objections 
I am submitting this representation to support the review of the license granted to Gremio de London under the 
licensing objective prevention of a public nuisance. 

The rear yard is bounded by 9 residential flats within 25 and 26 Savage Gardens to the west and 90 flats in 1 Pepys 
Street to the south, a large number of which have windows overlooking the yard. The openings to 26A Savage 
Gardens (which have recently been enlarged and enhanced) and the metal platform forming the fire escape at first 
floor level (which is proposed to be used as access to the lower terrace) are in close proximity to the residential 
units. The western most door opens directly adjacent to the nearest unit at 26 Savage Gardens, whilst the raised 
terrace directly adjoins a first floor flat roof of no. 26 Savage Gardens, (which houses a skylight serving a ground 

Page 39

Appendix 3ii)



2

floor flat) and is in extremely close proximity to a bedroom window of the first floor flat of no. 26. The windows to 
the rear of no. 25 Savage Gardens and 1 Pepys Street are set back slightly from the yard area behind a wall rising to 
first floor level but are still in close proximity to the unit and yard. Windows located at first floor and above in the 
residential premises directly overlook the yard. There are therefore significant members of the public affected by 
activities in the yard.  
 
Local residents have an expectation that noise will diminish particularly as the evening progresses. In this case the 
use of the yard will have a detrimental noise impact upon the many surrounding residential properties, both 
throughout the day and into the evening. The rear yard is expected to hold 50-60 people. Where there are 
congregations of people, particularly when eating and drinking, it is common for there to be a build-up of noise. The 
City’s Noise Strategy 2016 – 2026 specifically identifies that a significant proportion of noise complaints are 
generated by “cafes, pubs and bars” and identifies the key source from “leisure uses” as “people and music”. 
Furthermore the yard is enclosed on all sides which will have the effect of amplifying any noise. 
 
In addition to noise from people in the yard, there is potential for the noise generated from within the 
premises escaping through the enlarged openings whether open or closed and the resulting noise being clearly 
audible from within the residential units beyond. This is particularly a problem in quiet locations where there are 
less background noises. The significant increase in the size of openings on the rear elevation would increase the 
potential for noise to escape unless significant soundproofing was installed and the doors and windows kept shut. 
This would appear to be impractical as the doors would be in constant use to access a rear smoking area and to 
access the yard below and therefore it is likely there would be noise seepage whenever the door is used. 
 
The license for the proposed yard restricts the hours of use to midnight at the latest. While this may limit some 
harmful effects of the yard the new doors between 26A Savage Gardens and the yard would likely be kept open, 
particularly within the warmer months. This will mean there will still be significant potential for noise transfer 
between 26A Savage Gardens and the neighbouring properties into the early hours. 
 
The raised outdoor terrace is likely to be utilised by smokers and people standing and drinking, particularly in 
summer months. The proximity of residential windows to the proposed raised terrace means that there is a high 
chance of smoke spreading into the residential properties, which would not be acceptable, and for customers to be 
standing and chatting in close proximity to residential premises giving rise to a noise nuisance. There would also be 
the potential for overlooking issues for the first floor flat at 26 Savage Gardens and for the flats at the lower floors of 
1 Pepys Street. 
 
In both the City of London’s Development Plan and Statement of Licensing Policy the onus is on developers to 
demonstrate that proposals will not create a public nuisance, and where there will be a nuisance to provide 
mitigation measures. The issues raised do not appear to have been sufficiently addressed in order that the licensing 
objective is not undermined. 
 
Other Comments 
It should be noted that the proposed use of the yard and the physical alterations associated with enabling that use 
constitute a material change of use and operational development requiring planning permission. No application for 
planning permission has been submitted to the Development Division and the use and development are therefore 
unauthorised. The Planning Enforcement Team are currently conducting an investigation into this matter. Any 
application for planning permission would need to be considered on its merits and cannot be pre-determined.  
 
Kind regards 
 
Gideon Stothard  
Town Planning Assistant (DM and Enforcement) 
Department of the Built Environment  
Tel:   
www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/plans 
 

Page 40



3

 
 
 

From: Williams, Loreen  
Sent: 18 May 2018 12:18 
Subject: Application for licence review - Gremio De London, 26A Savage Gardens EC3N 2AR (Tower ward) 
 
Dear All, 
 
Please find attached an application for licence review, received recently by our Licensing section. If you 
have any further queries, please do not hesitate to contact the Licensing Team on 020 7332 3406 or via 
email licensing@cityoflondon.gov.uk  
 
Objections or comments are to be made by Friday 8th June 2018. 
 
Kind Regards 
 
Loreen Williams 
Operational Support Officer 
Markets and Consumer Protection  
City Of London 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Page 43

Appendix 3iii)



Gremio, 26a Savage Gardens, London EC3N 2AR 

Application for a Review of a Premises Licence: 11 May 2018 

The City of London Licensing Authority hereby makes a representation in support of the above 
application. 
 
The Licensing Authority has concerns that the Licence Holder will not manage the premises in 
accordance with the Licensing Objectives. Specifically, there is concern that the venue’s proximity to 
residential properties will give rise to public nuisance. 
 
The Premises Licence was granted on 22 June 2017 following a hearing before the Licensing Sub-
Committee. The licence has not yet been utilised but a number of residents have already expressed 
unease that they will be disturbed by noise emanating from the site. Further, the Licensing Authority 
has subsequently formed the view that two false statements were submitted as part of the original 
application. Namely, the rateable value was incorrectly stated and the rear terrace was described as 
surrounded by commercial properties. These procedural inadvertences suggest that the licensee takes 
a reckless approach to complying with the relevant legislation. 
 
Consequently, the Licensing Authority is not confident that the premises will be operated in the 
correct manner. It would invite the Committee to impose a number of restrictions on the licence to 
minimise the risk of disturbance to neighbours. The terrace could be removed from Annex 4 (Premises 
Licence) as an area providing licensable activity and a condition may be imposed preventing patrons 
using the terrace at any time. There could also be a condition requiring doors and windows to be 
closed at all times except for access and egress. 
 
The site has traditionally been run as a restaurant with a terminal hour of 11pm. The Committee may 
wish to consider reducing the current times permitted for licensable activity. This would minimise 
noise nuisance from patrons dispersing from the premises in the early hours. 
 
 

Licensing Authority 
City of London 

PO Box 270 
Guildhall 

London 
EC2P 2EJ 

020 7332 3406 

Page 44



 
 
 

Fire Safety Regulation, North East 1 Team 
169 Union Street   London SE1 0LL 

T  
 

Minicom 020 7960 3629 
london-fire.gov.uk 

 

FS_C08_04a  (Rev 3,  01/04/2018) Page 1 of 3 
 

City Of London Licensing Department  
PO Box 230 
Guildhall  
London EC1V 2 EJ 
 

The London Fire Commissioner is the 
fire and rescue authority for London 

 
Date  7 June 2018 
Our Ref  00-0000 

 

Dear Sir/Madam 
 
LICENSING ACT 2003 
 
Premises:  Gremio de London Limited -26A Savage gardens London EC3N 2AR 
LN/200506202 
 
The London Fire Commissioner (the Commissioner) is the fire and rescue authority for London. The 
Commissioner is responsible for enforcing the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 (The 
Order) in London.  
 
With reference to the review of licence   the Commissioner wants to make a representation to the 
Licensing Authority in relation to this application on grounds of Public Safety . 
 
The applicant has been informed that the Commissioner will be making a representation to the 
Licensing Authority. 
 
The items that are of concern to  the Commissioner are detailed on the attached schedule.  

 The premises is accessed via a set of double doors in to a lobby area then ascends a staircase 
and turns in to a club type area- low ceilings due to it being a mezzanine  area. 

 The premises is  built inside a railway arch .There are two sets of fire doors at the rear both 
leading on to a single stair that has irregular stair treads risers and goings. 

 Restricted secondary escape route  on to a raised terrace area with only a 600 wide access 
leading to  a staircase that leads down and turns towards the front of the premises . ( 
information from submitted plans) The new external terrace area has temporary support  
Acro props that support the main structure these are intruding in to the escape route . 

 The escape route has been included in the licensable area and this area is not a sterile area , 
with extract cooking ducting that is not protected as well as numerous air condition units 
that are not protected and some are open .See yellow Guide places of entertainment section 
C3 Recommendations are set out   C3.01, c3.02  and C3.03 , the travel distance for this 
second escape route is over 18 m to a final place of safety even though two directions of 
travel have been provided they merge before final exit .` 

Page 45

Appendix 3iv)



 Page 2 of 3 
 

 The escape passage way then proceeds towards the initial entrance lobby where the two flows 
meet again . 

  The secondary escape route is not under the  sole control of the one tenant on the top floor 
,(two other doors one of which is a fire escape door from Ladbroke , the other is an access 
door from the Bavarian Beer House  who often have the door open in to the escape 
passageway and do store items outside there back door.) 

  I have inspected the ground floor premises in the past and witnessed the poor state of the 
escape route .  

 The passage way is  cluttered with air conditioning units and other equipment ,also quite dark 
with trip hazards etc. 

 The premises also have a large outside area that is going to be decked out ,its only one meter 
from residential premises, the decking in this location will present a fire hazard within the 
light well of the premises and is in close proximity to residential premises , this area will no 
doubt be used as a smoking area and as such no procedure or management of the outside 
area has been mentioned in the application. Several; fire have occurred within the London 
Fire Brigade area as a result of discarded smoking materials under decked areas. 

 I have discounted the largest fire doors and this leaves the single escape route which if made 
slightly wider could provide escape for  220 persons on a 1050 wide escape route however. 
The narrowing of the escape route and more importantly the merging escape routes  the 
London Fire Brigade I believe the figure should be a lot less.( when it was a restaurant they 
only had around 80 people in the premises ) 

 In using the yellow guide “ Places of entertainment”  table 6 refers to escape routes and 
minimum widths , after the section stating ground floor premises, it goes on to say  all other 
premises Not less than two exits should be provided  each 1050 mm  and a safe capacity is 
recommended as  150 .( this would also include staff )   

 
 
Please advise me, at your earliest convenience, of the date and time of the Licensing Committee 
Hearing. 
 
Should these matters be resolved to the satisfaction of this Commissioner at least 2 days prior to the 
Licensing Committee Hearing the representation will be withdrawn. 
 
Any queries regarding this letter should be addressed to the person named below.  If you are 
dissatisfied in any way with the response given, please ask to speak to the Team Leader quoting our 
reference. 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
for Assistant Commissioner (Fire Safety) 
Directorate of Operations 

 
 
 
 

Page 46



 Page 3 of 3 
 

Reply to Nigel Bedford      Direct T  

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



Page 49

Appendix 4i)



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



Page 57

Appendix 4ii)



Page 58



Marianne Fredericks CC 
 
 
 

Licensing Act 2003 
The Licensing Act 2003 (Premises licences and club 
premises certificates) Regulations 2005 
Revised Guidance issued under section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 
City of London Licensing Policy  
 

-o-o-O-o-o- 
 

GREMIO de LONDON Ltd 
26A SAVAGE GARDENS 

 
-o-o-O-o-o- 

 
I am writing in support of Ms Beverly Hurley's application to review the 
premises licence at the above location. In addition to the Prevention of Public 
Nuisance and Public Safety I also wish to raise Crime and Disorder concerns.  
 
I am a Common Councilman for the Ward of Tower in which the premises are 
situated.  
 
I live in the Ward, above a busy public house, some 2 or 3 minutes walk from 
Savage Gardens.  
 
I was elected to the Court of Common Council of the City of London in 2008 
and have served continuously since. I was appointed, by the Court, to the 
Licensing Committee in 2009, served as Chairman in 2013 - 16 and Deputy 
Chairman 2011 - 2013 and 2016 - 2017. I serve on various other committees 
including Planning and Transportation and its Street & Walkways Sub 
Committee which deals with Highway matters; Children and Community 
Services which covers Housing, Education and Social Services; Policy and 
Resources which is responsible for governance arrangements, strategic 
priorities, agreeing policy, allocating overall resources and overseeing the 
City’s security and emergency planning arrangements, as well as various 
other committees and governorships.  
 
 
At the time the original application was made I was looking after an elderly 
former colleague and arranging his admission to hospital. I missed an email 
advising me of applications.  
 
The applicants failed to post the legible pale blue A4 notice prominently at 
the premises as required by Regulation 25(a) and Section 17(5). 

Page 59

Appendix 4iii)



 
The applicants failed to place a notice in a newspaper circulating in the 
vicinity of the premises as required by Regulation 25(b) and Section 17 (5). 
 
If the applicants had advertised their application in accordance with 
Regulation 25 as required by Section 17 then it is almost certain that a 
constituent would have raised the matter in sufficient time for me to prepare a 
representation within the prescribed period.  
 
 

Public Nuisance 
I have carefully read Ms Beverly Hurley's representation regarding public 
nuisance and I agree fully with what she has said and adopt it as mine. 
 
I enclose a copy of the hotel's representation from last year. Although this was 
before the Licensing Sub-Committee last year, it forms part of the broader 
picture now and the Sub-Committee conducting the review should not 
disregard it. As I understand the hotel's ground floor bar on Savage Gardens 
is licensed to 11.00 pm, but out of respect for their residential neighbours they 
do not allow people with drinks outside after 10.00 pm.  
 
 

Public Safety 
I have read Ms Hurley's representation carefully and reflected upon what she 
has said about the Denmark Place fire and complacency and I agree 
wholeheartedly and again adopt all of what she has said regarding public 
safety as my own.  
 
 

Crime and Disorder 
I understand that the phrase 'light touch regulation' appeared in the white 
paper that proceeded the Bill that subsequently became the Licensing Act 
2003. Her Majesty's Government and subsequently Parliament realised that 
the vast majority of those who owned, managed and worked in the Licensed 
Trade were honest and decent men and women earning a living in a lawful 
and responsible manner.  The matters that have come to light regarding the 
original application (viewed in conjunction with the failure to advertise the 
application) cast doubt in my mind upon the trustworthiness of those involved 
with Gremio de London. 
 
The Original  Application  
On 28 April 2017 Maxwell John Alderman acting on behalf of Gremio de 
London Limited submitted an application for a premises licence at 26A 
Savage Gardens. The application form was falsified in three material respects. 
 
A. Rateable Value / Fee Payable  
The rateable value stated on the application was £6,700 which meant the 
applicants only paid £190 to make the application. The true rateable value of 
the premises is at least £63,200 which meant that the fee that should have 

Page 60



been paid to make the application would have been at least £315. More 
disturbingly the rateable value box is on the second page of the application 
form immediately below the premises address and may have given officers 
the impression that the application was for very small premises and as a result 
have become a very low priority.  
 
The figure of £6,700 is the rateable value of a small games room within the 
premises, but it is difficult to perceive any reasonable basis on which Mr 
Alderman could have thought it was the rateable value of the premises that 
Gremio were seeking a licence for.  
 
Mr Alderman is involved in the management of numerous pubs and bars and 
according to the sole director of Gremio, Mr Anthony James Thomas, when I 
spoke to him on site on Friday 13 April 2018,  Mr Alderman deals with the 
licence applications of which there are (again according to Mr Thomas) 7 or 8 
a year. Rateable values vary across London but not dramatically. Mr 
Alderman knew the figure was incorrect. 
 
Secondly, when the premises were advertised 'To Let' by Grant Mills Wood on 
behalf of Network Rail a rateable value of £58,700 was stated.  
 
Thirdly, whether the Valuation Office Agency database is searched by 
postcode or by street and town the rateable values of £6,700 "Bst 26a, 
Savage Gardens, London, EC3N 2AR" and £56,500 "Pt Gnd Mezz & 1st Fs 
26a, Savage Gardens, London, EC3N 2AR" both appear.  
 
B. Surrounding Properties 
It is inconceivable that the applicants were unaware of the immediately 
adjacent residential properties when they claimed in regard of the currently 
derelict area "The terrace to the rear of the property is surrounded by 
commercial properties and as such will not need to be time limited though it 
will be regularly monitored and well lit." Mr Alderman consented to act as 
Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS), which means either he knew about 
the residential neighbours or he was consenting to the DPS of licensed 
premises he was wholly unfamiliar with.  
 
During my meeting with Mr Thomas on 13 April 2018 he expressed the 
opinion that this false statement did not matter because it was known at the 
Licensing Sub Committee that the derelict area was surrounded by residential 
properties (Mr Alderman admitted at the hearing 22 June 2017 that the 
derelict area was, in fact, surrounded by residential properties). This is not 
case, responsible authorities were taken in by the false statement during the 
28 day consultation period and therefore missed the opportunity to make 
representations.  
 
C. Plans submitted 28 Apr 2017 
These plans show a walkway above escape route, which was not constructed 
until earlier this year.  
 

Page 61



Section 17(3) requires an application for a premises licence be accompanied 
by a ' a plan of the premises to which the application relates,'. Any doubts as 
the meaning of the phrase "a plan of premises" can be resolved in the normal 
way by reference to the rest of the Act. Section 29 provides a mechanism by 
which planned premises can obtain a licence. As paragraph 8.87 of the Home 
Office guidance explains:  
 

"Where premises are being or are about to be constructed, extended or 
otherwise altered for the purpose of being used for one or more 
licensable activities, investors may be unwilling to commit funds unless 
they have some assurance that a premises licence covering the 
desired licensable activities would be granted for the premises when 
the building work is completed."  

 
Paragraph 8.89 of the guidance provides that an application can be made 
under S.17 where inter alia "clear plans of the proposed structure exist", but 
paragraph 8.89 must be read in conjunction with paragraph 8.90 that states:  
 

"In such cases, the licensing authority would include in the licence the 
date upon which it would come into effect."  

 
The applicants asked for a licence starting 1 July 2017, but in the event were 
granted a licence on the 22 June 2017 starting the same day. That was the 
day of the Licensing Sub-Committee, which I attended, and there was no 
indication from the Mr Alderman that the plans were proposed rather than 
extant. 
 
Section 17(2) is clear that applications under Section 17 are subject to the 
Regulations made under Section 54. The application form for a premises 
licence is Schedule 2 of the Regulations and requires an applicant to state (at 
Part 3 of Schedule 2) when they want the licence to start.  
 
 
D. Plan drawn 16 May 2017  
The 'Ground Floor Plan' purports to show (in red) fire safety signs and 
equipment and by direction arrows the means of escape. It is also clearly 
marked 'LICENSING'. In that it omits plant, including air conditioning units and 
the flue from a neighbouring property, it gives the impression that the escape 
route is significantly wider than it actually is, but far worse than that it hides 
the fact that persons attempting to make their escape along this passageway 
would be impeded by irregular obstructions. If the London Fire Brigade had 
been aware of the irregular obstructions along the escape route I should have 
thought that they would have made a site visit and submitted an objection to 
the grant of licence.  
 
 
Deceit in obtaining the licence is not a ground for revoking the licence, but 
alcohol and dishonesty are a toxic mix. Given the above matters, the 
Licensing Authority cannot have the usual confidence that the premises 
licence holder and the designated premises supervisor will make reasonable 

Page 62



efforts to comply with conditions or licensing laws. The City of London and the 
various responsible authorities all recognise that on occasions mistakes are 
made and licensed premises fail to comply with laws and / or conditions but 
they know that the vast majority of those involved in the licensed trade in the 
Square Mile are honest and decent people and therefore work with the trade 
to resolve matters. There are, however, limits and Gremio's actions in regard 
of the application, the application fee, the plans and the failure to advertise the 
application casts further doubt on whether they can be fully trusted to operate 
the premises in a lawful and orderly manner. The Licence should therefore be 
revoked on Crime and Disorder grounds.  
 
In the event that the Licensing Sub Committee has doubts regarding this 
matter then they may wish to note that on 19 July 2017, less than a month 
after Mr Alderman had to admit to the City's Licensing Sub Committee on 22 
June 2017 that his statement "The terrace to the rear of the property is 
surrounded by commercial properties and as such will not need to be time 
limited though it will be regularly monitored and well lit." was untrue, he copied 
and pasted the same words into an application to the London Borough of 
Lambeth, where it was also untrue (There is a park to the rear of the Lambeth 
premises). In fact every single word of Mr Alderman's response to the query " 
Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing 
objectives:" (section 18 of 21 of the premises licence application form) is a 
copy and paste of his Savage Gardens application. I enclose a copy of the 
application in regard of Arch 77 Albert Embankment.  Mr Alderman's actions 
display a complete contempt for the four licensing objectives. 
 
 
 

Further Matters 
 
Grant of Licence 
There is a commonly held, but entirely erroneous belief that if a person or 
company makes an application for a premises licence then unless somebody 
objects the grant of a licence is automatic.  
 
The reality plainly set out at Section 18(1)(a) is that unless an application for a 
premises licence is made in accordance with section 17 and (as set out at 
Section 18(1)(b)) the applicant has complied with the requirements set out at 
Section 17(5) then the power of a Licensing Authority to grant a licence does 
not crystalise.  
 
This is clear in the Revised Guidance issued under section 182, which states 
at paragraph 1.15 (General Principles) that: 
 

If an application for a premises licence or club premises 
certificate has been made lawfully and there have been no 
representations from responsible authorities or other persons, the 
licensing authority must grant the application,..  
(Emphasis added) 
 

Page 63



and also at paragraph 34 of the City of London's Licensing Policy  
 

The City of London Licensing Authority only has discretion on 
whether to grant applications for new premises licences or 
variations to licences, or to impose conditions on granting or 
varying licences, if representations relevant to the licensing 
objectives are made by ‘responsible authorities’ or by ‘other 
persons’. If no representations are received and the application 
has been lawfully made, the Licensing Authority must grant all 
applications for premises licences.  
(Emphasis added) 
 

As set out above Gremio's application was not in accordance with S.17 and 
the S.17(5) requirements were not complied with and regardless of other 
concerns set out below, the premises licence should not have been granted.  
 
The unlawful manner in which the application was made and the licence was 
issued are not grounds upon which the licence can be reviewed, but nor can 
the applicant's actions in obtaining the licence be disregarded.  
 
 
Premises Leaseholder  
Section 2 Licensing Act states that "A licensable activity may be carried on 
under and in accordance with a premises licence."  
 
I met with Mr Anthony James Thomas a director of Gremio de London Limited 
at 26A Savage Gardens on 13 April 2018. He told me that subsequent to 
obtaining the licence in June 2017 they, by which I understood him to mean 
Gremio de London Ltd, had leased the premises from Network Rail. It 
transpires that it was not Gremio that leased the premises, but another 
company of which Mr Thomas is a director of, namely Tooting Tram and 
Social Limited. I enclose the Land Registry Title and Plan, which is a public 
document. It is not clear which company is responsible for the works that have 
been carried out at the premises, nor who would be carrying out licensable 
activities. Despite Tooting leasing the premises last year there has not to my 
knowledge been any application to transfer the licence. 
 
I see and hear various references to the 'Antic Group', but it would appear that 
since 2012 there has been no such entity, but merely a variety of oddly named 
companies that appear to somehow involve Mr Thomas and / or Mr Alderman.  
 
 
 
 

Page 64



1

Minas, Aggie

From: Mark Field 
Sent: 30 May 2018 10:46
To: Davenport, Peter
Cc: Breese, Robert
Subject: Enquiry from Mark Field MP (Case Ref: ZA19371)

Dear Peter, 
 
Re: Gremio De Fenchurch, 26A Savage Gardens, London, EC3N 2AR, LN/200506202 
 
I trust this message finds you well. 
 
As I am sure you are well aware, a number of constituents from the City have expressed their deep concern and 
upset regarding the granting of an alcohol and music license to the above named premises. 
 
I am, of course, aware that such matters are decided upon solely by the local authority and I should not wish to wade 
unnecessarily it to matters beyond my remit. Nevertheless, I am naturally keen for my constituents’ views to be well 
represented, which is why I write to you in support of their application for the review of Gremio De Fenchurch’s 
alcohol and music licence. 
 
Based on constituents’ correspondence, I am led to believe that Gremio De Fenchurch was able to secure its license 
after submitting a not entirely truthful application and that it also plans to utilise a once derelict outside area as a 
terrace, which has led to reasonable concerns about the levels of noise which will be created by customers and the 
inevitable nuisance this will cause for the 100 residence living in the vicinity. 
 
Given the strength of feeling amongst residents and the evidence in support of their position, I would hope that the 
City gives serious and careful consideration to their concerns and to the application for review. Naturally, I am sure all 
parties will work together on this matter to come to a fair resolution. 
 
Thank you for your assistance with this matter and I look forward to hearing from you shortly. 
 
Kind regards, 
MARK 
  

Page 65

Appendix 4iv)



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66



Page 67

Appendix 4v)



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 68



Page 69

Appendix 4vi)



Page 70



Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72



Page 73

Appendix 4vii)



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 74



Page 75

Appendix 4viii)



Page 76



Page 77

Appendix 4ix)



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81

Appendix 4x)



Page 82



Page 83

Appendix 4xi)



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84



Page 85

Appendix 4xii)



Page 86



Page 87

Appendix 4xiii)



Page 88



Page 89

Appendix 4xiv)



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94



Page 95

Appendix 4xv)



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99

Appendix 4xvi)



Page 100



Page 101

Appendix 4xvii)



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102



Page 103

Appendix 4xviii)



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 104



Page 105

Appendix 4xix)



Page 106



Page 107

Appendix 4xx)



Page 108



Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110



Page 111

Appendix 4xxi)



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115

Appendix 4xxii)



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 130



Page 131

Appendix 4xxiii)



Page 132



Page 133



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 134



Page 135

Appendix 4xxiv)



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 136



Page 137

Appendix 4xxv)



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 138



Page 139

Appendix 5



Page 140



Page 141



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 142



Premises Location Map 

 

 

 

 

Trade Name Alcohol Closing 

Time

Late Night 

Refreshment 

Closing Time

1 Gremio de Fenchurch 02:00 02:00

2 Novotel London Tower Bridge Midnight 05:00

3 Fen Bar 23:00 Unlicensed

4 Le Paris Grill Restaurant Midnight Midnight

5 City University Club 23:00 Unlicensed

6 Trinity House 23:00 Unlicensed

7 Marks & Spencer to Go Midnight 01:00

8 DoubleTree by Hilton 02:00 02:30

9 Natural Kitchen Midnight Midnight

10 Association of British Insurers 21:45 Unlicensed

11 Cheshire Cheese 01:00 01:00

12 The Crutched Friar 01:00 01:00

13 The Grange City Hotel 02:00 05:00

14 Bavarian Beerhouse 02:00 02:30

Page 143

Appendix 6



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 144


	Agenda
	 Hearing Procedure
	 Report of the Director of Markets & Consumer Protection
	1i) Application for Review
	1ii) Photographs in support of review application
	2 Premises licence including conditions and plans
	3i) Environmental Health
	3ii) Planning
	3iii) Licensing
	3iv) London Fire Brigade
	4i) Pepys Street RTM
	4ii) Gillot (Crutched Friars RA)
	4iii) Marianne Fredericks CC
	4iv) Mark Field MP
	4v) Alan Perrin
	4vi) Nigel Lall
	4vii) R Robinson
	4viii) Geoff Boyd
	4ix) Mark Leverick
	4x) Lopa Sarkar
	4xi) Ivan Morozov
	4xii) Mark Stewart
	4xiii) John & Lynn Wood
	4xiv) Jayne Evans
	4xv) Keith Mansfield
	4xvi) Paul Pavlou
	4xvii) Resident
	4xviii) Luida Mahalski
	4xix) Anthony Mahalski
	4xx) Frank & Margaret Robotham
	4xxi) Timothy Jordan
	4xxii) Adrian & Carol
	4xxiii) Nicholas Jepson
	4xxiv) Anthony Agoro
	4xxv) Mark Rowan
	5 Licence holder representation
	6 Map of subject premises together with other licensed premises in the area and their latest terminal time for alcohol sales



